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PER CURIAM:*

Jaime Cruz-Garcia, an alien, appeals the revocation of his

supervised release following conviction for possession with intent

to distribute marijuana, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), and

his conviction and sentence for being found unlawfully present in
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the United States following removal, in violation of 8 U.S.C.

§ 1326(a) and (b)(2).

Cruz-Garcia argues that the district court reversibly erred

when it denied his collateral challenge to his 1998 removal order,

which forms the basis for his 8 U.S.C. § 1326 conviction, which in

turn forms the basis for his supervised release for his earlier

marijuana conviction.  Cruz-Garcia’s collateral challenge is

premised upon the Supreme Court’s holding in INS v. St. Cyr.1  He

argues that the procedure employed in connection with his removal

was fundamentally unfair because he was not advised that he was

eligible to apply for discretionary relief from deportation

pursuant to 8 U.S.C. § 1182(c), Immigration and Nationality Act §

212(c).

To succeed in his collateral challenge, Cruz-Garcia must

establish, inter alia, that his removal proceeding was

fundamentally unfair.2  In Lopez-Ortiz, we recently examined a

factually similar collateral challenge to a removal order in light

of St. Cyr and held that, “[b]ecause eligibility for INA § 212(c)

relief is not a liberty or property interest warranting due process

protection, . . . the Immigration Judge’s error in failing to

explain Lopez-Ortiz’s eligibility [for INA § 212(c) relief] does
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not rise to the level of fundamental unfairness.”3  Our holding in

Lopez-Ortiz precludes a finding that Cruz-Garcia’s removal

proceedings were fundamentally unfair, since all of Cruz-Garcia’s

arguments supporting his collateral attack are premised on the

availability of INA § 212(c) discretionary relief.4  We need not

address the other components of Cruz-Garcia’s collateral challenge

to his deportation order.5

Cruz argues for the first time on appeal that 8 U.S.C.

§ 1326(b)(1) and (2) are unconstitutional because a prior felony

conviction is an element of the offense of illegal re-entry, and

not merely a sentence enhancement, and should have been charged in

the indictment and proven beyond a reasonable doubt.  His argument

is foreclosed by the Supreme Court’s decision in Almendarez-Torres

v. United States.6

Accordingly, the district court’s judgment is AFFIRMED.


